
 

 
 

THE CITY OF KEY WEST 
1300 White Street 

Key West, FL 33040 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 – BAHAMA VILLAGE MEDICAL CLINIC 

RFP 004-20 
 
This addendum is issued as supplemental information to the bid package for clarification of certain matters of both 
a general and a technical nature. The referenced bid package is hereby addended in accordance with the 
following items: 
 
- Pre-bid meeting Minutes 
- Sign-in sheet 
- 727 Fort St. Repairs Plans 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
All Bidders shall acknowledge receipt and acceptance of this Addendum No. 1 by submitting the addendum 
with their proposal.  This Addendum does not alter the bid-opening date of December 11, 2019 at 3:00pm. 
Proposals submitted without acknowledgement or without this Addendum may be considered non-responsive. 
 

 
 
 
 

Signature Name of Business 



 

 
 

THE CITY OF KEY WEST 
1300 White Street 

Key West, FL 33040 
 
 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 
Bahama Village Medical Clinic; RFP 004-20 

November 13, 2019 
 

MINUTES 
 
1. Attendees – See attached sign-in sheet  

 
2. Presentation 

 
a. Introductions by Steve McAlearney 
b. Key dates 

i. Outlined in the RFP. Schedule is aggressive and requires all questions to be submitted by 11/27 and 
Proposals submitted by 12/11. 

c. Selection process and criteria 
i.  Proposals will be reviewed by City Staff. Weights/values associated with the selection process are 

found in the RFP. 
ii. RFP asks for best up-front proposal, not to be negotiated after selection. 

d. Forms and affidavits 
i. No questions asked about forms 

 
3. Tour of building – A tour of the building was conducted by Staff with both potential bidders present. 

 
4. Questions 

 
1. Should proposal include lease terms? 

 Proposal should include the best desired terms of lease  
 Services cannot be diluted in negotiations 
 The selection of services offered will be part of the ranking  

2. What services do you want? 
 Proposer to offer as much as they can deliver 
 The greatest breadth of services possible is preferred 
 Services cannot be offered and reduced or retracted afterwards 

3. On page 8 #2, is accreditation mandatory or preferred? 
 Those providing medical care shall be appropriately licensed by the State of Florida.  

4. Is a build out of the full space expected or preferred? 
 The build out plan included in the proposal will be considered against other proposals 

5. Has the need (services) been identified? (similar to previous question) 
 Primary care is definitely a requirement. In terms of other services, as many as possible are desired 

6. Is dental care a priority? It would be expensive, but if it is a priority of the community we would like to know, in writing 
 Dental would be preferred but we do not have a specific survey or list of needs 



 AHEC: Primary and pre-natal care are high priorities for the community. Bahama Village is the primary target but 
all of downtown will use/benefit 

7. 3rd row “project team” under selection criteria. What is required for this section? 
 Team experience and their background should be described 
 The business plan team as well as medical personnel that will be providing the care 
 Should be sectioned or categorized and include only those who will be working on or at this location 

8. Description of qualifications and core services questionnaire (1 and 2) or elsewhere? 
 Description should only be included in this section 

9. Where should documents mentioned in the executive summary be provided? 
 No specific place. Reports should be included and will not be counted as part of the 25 pages 

10. On executive summary, if there are no judgements, claims or defaults, what should be included? 
 Explicitly state that there are none 

11. What media is preferred for the two electronic proposal copies? 
 USB drives are preferred 

12. Is the City looking for anything specific as far as annual reports? 
 If there have been prior issues that can be documented, describe how were they resolved 

13. Are tax returns and audits required? 
 They are not listed in RFP but can be included for consideration 

14. In section 2, series #3, “How is this” reported to the City? 
 This should actually be for part C. An example of how this could be reported to the City is a summary of 

customer satisfaction surveys 
15. Is the startup date of the facility established by the proposer or City? 

 The proposal should include an estimated date of when the facility is expected to be operational 
16. What are the existing services and utilities? Is there a 2” water line available? 

 See attached drawings (727 Fort Street Repairs) 
17. When will selection be determined? 

 Proposals will be opened 12/11 
 Selection to follow with approval at Commission meeting in January  
 Commission meetings 1/7 and 1/22 
 Presentations will likely be required 

18. After selection, how will additional items be negotiated? 
 Additional terms would also be subject to Commission approval 
 Would not begin until Lease is signed 
 Lease discussion will establish project timeline 

19. What is the timeline for permitting? 
 2-3 months after design is complete, with the exception of necessary variances 

20. For minimum qualifications under core services in section 2, do we need to be specific on the model of clinical care? 
 Primary care has a specific definition and we are asking for the types/specialties provided. Primary care is an 

inaccurate title for this section 
21. There are two scenarios: start with all services or start with partial services and add services as the facilities grows. Is 

that acceptable? 
 The addition of services is acceptable and can be negotiated based on a timeline or other milestones 

22. What condition is the roof in? Roof was in adequate condition at time of “white boxing.”  
23. What does “white box” mean for the building? Spall repair to columns and beams, building gutted and old windows 

replaced or boarded up.  
24. What is the building square footage? See attached drawings (727 Fort Street Repairs) 

 
25. Are other parking options around the facility available? There are potential options on the lot and along Petronia St. The 

Fort Street lot is also available.  
26. Is this property subject to HARC? 



 Yes 
27. Can unused space be sub-leased? Not likely, unless only way to provide additional health related services.  
28. How much parking is required per City code? 5 spaces per doctor/dentist  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 






































